AGREEMENT

BETWEEN

THE TRENTON BOARD OF EDUCATION

AND

TRENTON EDUCATIONAL SECRETARIES ASSOCIATION (TESA)

JULY 1, 2005 - JUNE 30, 2006 & JULY 1, 2006 - JUNE 30, 2009

TINEITION DOMIND OF L

TABLE OF CONTENTS

	raye
Preamble	3
Article 1 - Recognition	3
Article 2 - Modification of Agreement and Negotiation of	
Successor Agreement	4
Article 3 - Grievance Procedure	5
Article 4 - Employee Rights	6
Article 5 - Association Rights and Privileges	7
Article 6 - Management Functions	7
Article 7 - Protection of Employees and Property	7
Article 8 - Seniority and Job Security	8
Article 9 - Salary	9
Article 10 - Super-Maximum and Longevity	9
Article 11 - Voluntary Transfers and Reassignments	10
Article 12 - Involuntary Transfers and Reassignments	10
Article 13 - Leave Policies	11
Article 14 - Vacations and Holidays	12
Article 15 - Medical Benefits	13
Article 16 - Vacancies and New Positions.	14
Article 17 - Substitutes	14
Article 18 - Daily Working Hours	15
Article 19 - Evaluation Procedure	15
Article 20 - Promotions,	15
Article 21 - Duration of Agreement	. 16
Schedule A - Salary Guide 2005-06	17
Schedule B – Salary Guide 2006-07	18
Schedule C – Salary Guide 2007-08	
Schedule D — Salary Guide 2008-09	

IMPIATOR DOWN OF FRE

This agreement is made and entered into on this first day of **July 1**, **2005 to June 30**, **2006 and July 1**, **2006 to June 30**, **2009**, by and between the TRENTON
BOARD OF EDUCATION (Hereinafter referred to as the "Board") and the TRENTON
EDUCATIONAL SECRETARIES ASSOCIATION (Hereinafter referred to as the
"Association").

PREAMBLE

Article 1 RECOGNITION

A. The Board hereby recognizes the Association as the sole and exclusive representative for collective negotiations concerning grievances and terms and conditions of employment for all personnel regularly employed under contract, or on leave from the Board, but excluding:

Trenton Administrators and Supervisors

Trenton Education Association

Attendance Officers

Security Officers

Executive Secretarial Unit

Business & Technical Unit

Cafeteria

.011 - 0002 102 110

Para-Professional Unit

Mechanics and Laborers

Custodian Unit

- B. This Agreement is negotiated in order to establish the terms and conditions of employment for all contractual employees represented by this unit.
- C. The provisions of this Agreement will constitute a binding obligation of the parties for the duration or until changed by mutual consent in writing. Any previously adopted policy, rule or regulation of the parties which is in conflict with a provision of this Agreement shall be superceded and replaced by this Agreement. Nothing in this Agreement which changes pre-existing policy, rules or regulations of the parties will operate retroactively unless expressed so stated.
- D. Unless otherwise indicated, the terms "employee" and "secretary" when used hereinafter in this Agreement shall refer specifically to those employees identified in the negotiating unit defined herein.
 - E. Reference to female employees shall also apply to male employees.

Article 2 MODIFICATION OF AGREEMENT AND NEGOTIATION OF SUCCESSOR AGREEMENT

دن، الد الانتهاديات.

INCIDENT DUMNE OF LEE.

- A. Before the Board adopts a change in policy which affects terms and conditions of employment, the Board will notify the Association, in writing, that it is considering such a change. The Association shall have the right to negotiate with the Board for a mutually acceptable change in said policy. Consistent with N.J.S.A. 34:13A-1 et. Seq., as amended, the Board shall not affect any change in policy concerning terms and conditions of employment except those so negotiated and included as part of this Agreement and contained herein.
- B. The Board agrees to negotiate with the Association over a Successor Agreement in accordance with N.J.S.A. 34:13A-1 et seq., as amended, the procedure set forth herein in a good-faith effort on both sides to reach continuing agreement on salaries and conditions of employment. The Association agrees to present to the Board its proposal for Successor Agreement. Any agreement so negotiated shall apply to all members of the negotiating unit and shall be reduced to in writing and signed by all the parties.
- C. During the negotiations, the party making the proposals shall submit such proposals in writing to the other party. Negotiations shall commence with a meeting at a mutually satisfactory place within fifteen (15) days after receipt of a proposal, unless the Board and the Association mutually agree in writing to an extension of time. During negotiations, the Board and the Association shall present relevant data, exchange points of view, and make proposals and counterproposals. Each party shall promptly make available to the other, upon request, information within its possession which is not privileged under law and is relevant to the subject under discussion. Either party may, if it so desires, utilize the services of outside consultants and may call upon professional and lay representatives to assist in the negotiations.
- D. Whenever members of the bargaining unit are mutually scheduled by the parties hereto to participate during working hours in conference, meetings, or in negotiations respecting the collective bargaining Agreement, they will suffer no loss of pay nor any recrimination.
- E. The Board agrees not to negotiate concerning said employees in the negotiating unit as defined in Article 1 of this Agreement, with any organization other than the Association for the duration of this Agreement.
- F. It is agreed that the cost of professionally printing this Agreement shall be borne by the Board of Education and the Association equally. The Association **and the Board** shall be responsible for the final contract draft prior to printing.
- G. This Agreement incorporates the entire understanding of the parties on all matters which were or could have been subject of negotiations. During the term of this Agreement, neither party shall be required to negotiate with respect to any such matter whether or not covered by this Agreement and whether or not within the knowledge or contemplation of either or both of the parties at the time they negotiated or executed this Agreement, except by mutual agreement.

Article 3 GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

INCINION DURING OF CO.

- A. A "grievance" is a claim by an employee or the Association based upon the interpretation, application, or violation of this Agreement, policies or administrative decisions affecting an employee or a group of employees.
 - B. Procedures for Adjusting Complaints and Grievances

Since it is important that grievances be processed as rapidly as possible, the number of days indicated at each level should be considered as maximum and every effort should be made to expedite the process. The time limits specified may, however, be extended by mutual agreement. If the written grievance is not filed within thirty (30) working days after the employee knew or should have known of the act or condition on which the grievance is based, then the grievance shall be waived. A dispute as to whether a grievance has been waived under this paragraph shall be subject to arbitration pursuant to Step Four.

C. Grievance shall be presented in writing on the appropriate form.

Step 1

The employee shall first discuss his complaint orally with his immediate supervisor, either alone or accompanied by an Association representative, with the objective of resolving the matter informally. In the event the complaint is not resolved informally, the employee shall present the grievance, in writing, to the supervisor, but not more than five (5) working days after the grievance meeting. The Supervisor must notify grievant of his decision within five (5) working days.

Step 2

The Association and/or the employee may appeal the decision of the Supervisor to the Superintendent or his designee, within seven (7) working days after receiving the decision of the immediate supervisor. The Superintendent or his designee shall hold a hearing within seven (7) working days and subsequently issue a decision in writing with supportive rationale not later than five (5) working days after the hearing to the aggrieved employee and the Association.

Step 3

The Association may appeal the decision of the Superintendent, or his designee, within five (5) working days after the receipt of the decision to the Board. A hearing shall be held by the Board within fifteen (15) working days after receipt of the appeal. The appeal shall be in writing and accompanied by a copy of the decision of the Superintendent or his designee.

Step 4

If the Board has failed to render a decision within fifteen (15) working days from the date of the hearing or the written decision in unacceptable to the aggrieved party, the grievance may be submitted to arbitration. The decision of the arbitrator shall be final and binding upon the parties and the arbitrator shall be selected from the American Arbitration Association and adhere to their rules and procedures. The arbitrator shall limit himself to the issue submitted to him and shall consider nothing else. He can add nothing to nor subtract anything from this Agreement.

MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

- A. Failure at any step of this procedure to communicate the decision on a grievance within the specified time limit shall permit the Association to proceed to the next step of this procedure.
- B. If a grievance arises from an action of authority higher than the immediate supervisor, the Association may present the grievance at STEP 2 of this procedure without STEP 1 thereof.
- C. No reprisals of any kind shall be taken by the Board or by any members of the Administrative Staff against any party of interest, any Association representative, or any other participant in the grievance procedure by reason of such participation.
- D. Any party in interest may be represented at any or all stages of the grievance procedure by himself, or, at his option, by a representative selected by the Association. When a party is not represented by the Association, the Association shall have the right to be present and to state its views at all stages of the grievance procedure.
- E. When any new evidence is submitted at a later step by either party the grievant may be required to return to STEP 1.
 - F. The cost of arbitration shall be borne equally by both parties.
- G. When a grievance is resolved the resolution of the grievance shall include the department or administrator responsible for implementation of relief granted.

Article 4 EMPLOYEE RIGHTS

- A. Pursuant to *N.J.S.A.* 34:13A-1 *et seq.*, the Board hereby agrees that every employee of the Board shall have the right freely to organize, join and support the Association and it affiliates for the purpose of engaging in collective negotiations and other concerted activities for mutual aid and/or protection. As a duly selected body exercising governmental power under the laws of the State of New Jersey, the Board undertakes and agrees that it shall not directly or indirectly discourage or deprive or coerce any employee in the enjoyment of any rights conferred by *N.J.S.A.* 34:13A-1 *et seq.*, and the United States; that it shall not discriminate against any employee with respect to hours, wages, or any terms or conditions of employment by reason of his membership in the Association and its affiliates, his participation in any activities of the Association and its affiliates, collective negotiations with the Board, or his institution of any grievance, complaint or proceedings under this Agreement or otherwise with respect to any terms or conditions of employment.
- B. Nothing contained herein shall be construed to deny or restrict to any employee such rights as he may have under New Jersey School Laws or other applicable laws and regulations. The rights granted to employees hereunder shall be deemed to be in addition to those provided elsewhere.
- C. No employee shall be disciplined, reduced in rank or compensation, without just cause. No grievance on this section shall be submitted to arbitration unless expressly permitted by law. Any such action asserted by the Board, or any agent or representative thereof, shall not be made in public and shall be subject to the grievance procedure herein set forth. Any dismissal or suspension shall be considered a disciplinary action and shall at the option of the employee be subject to the grievance procedure up to STEP 3 of the grievance procedure. Any criticism of an employee will be done privately in a confidential manner.

- D. No employee shall be prevented from wearing pins or other identification of membership in the Associations or its affiliates.
- E. Employees covered by this Agreement shall be notified in writing of their contract status for the ensuing year no later than May 15.

Article 5 ASSOCIATION RIGHTS AND PRIVILEGES

- A. The Board agrees to furnish to the Association in response to reasonable requests, from time to time, available public information concerning the district.
- B. Use of School Buildings -- Representatives of the Association shall be permitted to transact official Association business on school property at all reasonable times provided that this shall not interfere with or interrupt normal school operations.
- C. The Association and its representatives shall have the right to use school and Administration Building facilities and equipment, including typewriters, mimeographing machines, photocopiers, computers, other duplicating equipment, calculating machines, etc. and various types of audio-visual equipment at reasonable times, when such equipment is not otherwise in use. The Association shall pay for the reasonable cost of supplies incident in such use.
- D. The Association shall have the right to use the interschool mail facilities and school mail boxes as it deems necessary and without the approval of the building principal or other members of administration. Courtesy copies of all notices shall be forwarded to the Superintendent.
- E. The rights and privileges of the Association and its representatives as set forth in this Agreement shall be granted only to the Association as the exclusive representative of the employees, and to no other organization.
- F. An agency fee provision with the usual "safeguards" in accordance with *N.J.S.A.* 34:13A 5.5 *et seg.* shall be instituted at the 85% fee arrangement.

Article 6 MANAGEMENT FUNCTIONS

Subject to the provisions of this Agreement, the Board of Education reserves all rights and functions vested in it pursuant to applicable laws and regulations and such other functions as normally and customarily exercised by the Board of Education in the management of the affairs of the school district.

Article 7 PROTECTION OF EMPLOYEES AND PROPERTY

- A. Employees shall not be required to work under unsafe or hazardous conditions nor to perform tasks which endanger their health, safety or well-being.
- B. Employees shall not be required to perform first aid/medical duties except in emergencies.
- C. Employees shall not be required to perform tasks inconsistent with their general job description.

D. The Board shall reimburse employees for the reasonable cost of any clothing or other personal property damaged, stolen, or destroyed as a result of an assault while the employees are discharging their duties within the scope of their employment. The Board shall not be responsible for any personal property loss which results from employee negligence.

E. Employees shall not be required to work in buildings without the presence of a supervisor, security guard, or custodian. Should such situation arise, employees shall, prior to departure, give notice to the Office of Human Resources citing Article 7, Sec. E.

Such notice may not necessarily terminate the workday.

F. Sufficient security shall be provided in the parking lot of the Administration

Building during departure time.

G. Employees shall not be required to discipline pupils sent to the office by teachers or administrators except in emergency cases. Nor shall employees be required to supervise or in any way assume responsibility for such pupils.

Article 8 SENIORITY AND JOB SECURITY

A. In the event of any Reduction in Force (R.I.F.), district-wide seniority (the Board appointment date of employment on a permanent basis) shall apply. The Board shall retain the right to reduce the number of secretarial and clerical positions when done for just cause.

B. Any such reduction as above defined, shall only be accomplished in accordance with the following procedure: The employee/s affected by such a reduction shall have seniority rights over the most junior employee within his current category of employment (as listed in the salary guide), and those employee/s thus affected shall retain the same rights in replacing the most junior employee/s in their categories before reverting to the next lower category to exercise seniority rights, but in no case shall an affected employee/s reduction be any more than one (1) salary column at a time as established on the salary guide.

C. All affected employee/s shall retain their current salary until such time as their current salary appears within \$50.00 of the next highest step of the new column.

D. An employee who is laid off due to a R.I.F. shall only have a right to be recalled if additional secretarial and clerical positions become available—due to vacancies or creation of new positions within 3-1/2 years (forty-two months) from the date of lay off. Notification to be rehired shall be sent to the employee at the last known address by Registered Mail-Return Receipt Requested and regular mail. A copy of such notification will be sent by regular mail or hand delivered to the Association. The employee shall be given five (5) work days to notify the Board in writing that he/she is available to be rehired. Any employee who does not respond or indicates that he/she is not available shall waive all future rights to be recalled.

Article 9 SALARY

- A. All employees in the unit shall be on their proper step and paid according to the salary guide as published in the appropriate schedule.
- B. New employees with outside experience shall be placed on the salary guide according to the following schedule:
 - 1. An employee with 0-2 years experience shall be placed on Step 1; 3 years on Step 2; 4 years on step 3; 5 years experience (or more) on step 4. Years of experience as a secretary in the Trenton Schools shall be given full years of experience on the guide. Secretaries returning to the Trenton Public Schools shall be given full credit for each years previous experience in the Trenton Public Schools as a secretary. (This provision shall be retroactive for all secretaries currently employed by the Board of Education).
- C. Pay checks covering all employees included in this Agreement, with the exception of the Administration Building employees, shall be delivered to school offices.
- D. At the discretion of the Board, effective July 1, 2002, payday will change to the 15th and 30th of each month. When a payday falls on school holidays or vacation days, all employees covered by this Agreement shall receive their pay checks on the last previous working day.
- E. The "first day of a school year" shall herein mean July 1 or the first working day immediately following.
- F. All employees of the Association shall be reimbursed for approved use of their personal vehicle on Board related business at the rate per mile consistent with Board policy.
- G. The Board agrees to deduct from the salaries of its employees dues for any one or combination of Association as said employees individually and voluntarily authorize the Board to deduct.

Article 10 SUPER-MAXIMUM AND LONGEVITY

- A. All employees who have earned 30, 60, 90 credits shall be placed on the appropriate step of the salary guide. Credits must be in the approved work-related areas.
- B. To encourage further education pursuits, members shall be reimbursed up to the current College of NJ in-state rate for twelve (12) college credits per year that relates to an employment opportunity in the Trenton School District. Prior approval must be obtained by the Superintendent of Schools before courses are taken.
- C. Longevity -- experience in Trenton plus credited experiences outside of Trenton:

15 Years	\$600	additional
20 Years	\$600	additional
25 Years	\$600	additional
30 Years	\$800	additional
35 Years	\$600	additional

40 Years	\$600	additional
45 Years	\$600	additional
50 Years	\$600	additional
which will also be reflected	d in the	maximum.

Effective July 1, 1989, all employees shall be paid the amounts listed above for their respective years of experience irrespective of the date that level was attained.

Effective July 1, 1992 all employees on the current Administrative II salary guide shall be moved to the same step of the Administrative III salary guide. The current Administrative III salary guide shall be renamed as Administrative II salary guide.

Article 11 VOLUNTARY TRANSFERS AND REASSIGNMENTS

- A. Employees desiring a change in employment shall make their request in writing to the administrator in charge of Human Resources.
- B. These requests shall be acknowledged in writing by the Board of Education within a reasonable amount of time and shall be granted if a vacancy exists, if the Board of Education, in its sole discretion, elects to fill the position.
- C. If there are no vacancies at that time, the applicant's request for transfer shall be kept active until such written notice of withdrawal is received by the administrator in charge of Human Resources. A request shall be considered void at the end of each school year.

Article 12 INVOLUNTARY TRANSFERS AND REASSIGNMENTS

- A. Involuntary transfers will be made only when necessary and only when the following procedure is strictly adhered to:
 - 1. Notice of involuntary transfer or reassignment shall be given to employees as soon as practicable, but in no event no less than ten (10) calendar days prior to the formal action of the Board.
 - 2. An involuntary transfer or reassignment shall be made only after a meeting between the employee involved and the Administrator in charge of Human Resources at which time the employee will be notified of the reasons in writing.
 - 3. In the event that an employee objects to the transfer or reassignment, at this meeting, upon request of the employee, the Association will be notified and the Superintendent or his designee will meet with the Association's representative to discuss the matter before the transfer or reassignment is effected. Representation shall be provided consistent with the provisions of the grievance procedure. This meeting shall not, however, delay the effective date of the transfer.
 - 4. A list of open positions in the school system will be made available to all employees being involuntarily transferred or reassigned upon request.

Article 13 LEAVE POLICIES

INCHION DUMNE OF EE.

A. SICK LEAVE

Employees shall be allowed eighteen (18) days for leave for personal illness.

B. ACCUMULATED DAYS

The unused portion of such leave, as indicated in Section A, at the end of any year shall be accumulative.

C. ADDITIONAL SICK LEAVE

Only when an employee has exhausted his accumulated sick leave shall additional, non-accumulated sick leave benefits be considered by the Board on a case by case basis, pursuant to a written request. If additional sick leave time is granted by the Board, the rate of pay for each additional day shall be less the pay for a substitute. If no substitute is employed, no deduction shall be made.

D. Employees returning to Trenton Public Schools System should be entitled to previously accumulated unused sick leave.

E. ILLNESS IN IMMEDIATE FAMILY

Up to a total of three (3) days per year shall be allowed for illness in the immediate family with no loss of pay. Immediate family shall mean spouse, child, parent, brother, sister or other relative living in the same household. If and when district changes to State Health Benefits Plan, family illness day language shall be changed to reflect three (3) days annually for 10-month employees and four (4) days annually for 12-month employees.

F. DEATH IN THE FAMILY

Employees shall be allowed five (5) days without loss of pay at the time of death for immediate family which shall mean spouse, child, parent, brother or sister, grandparents, mother-in-law, father-in-law and any other relative living in the same household.

G. DEATH OF OTHERS

With the approval of the Superintendent of Schools, an employee shall be allowed an absence with no loss of pay for the death of others.

- H. PERSONAL BUSINESS OR RELIGIOUS HOLIDAYS
- Four (4) personal business days shall be allowed for either personal business or religious holidays. For all employees, personal business days not utilized during the year shall be added as an unused sick day for retirement purposes only and reimbursed as sick days under Section Q of this Article.
 - I. OTHER EMERGENCY OR URGENT REASONS

With the approval of the Superintendent of Schools, absence for other emergencies or urgent reasons may be allowed.

J. COURT ORDER

Absence for reason of subpoena shall result at no deduction from salary provided the subpoena is filed with the **Human Resources Department**, except where the employee is a party to the suit in which case full deduction shall be made.

K. JURY DUTY

Employees subpoenaed for jury duty shall receive full pay less fee received for such services.

L. INTER-SCHOOL VISITATIONS, CONFERENCES, CONVENTIONS With the approval of the Superintendent of Schools with no loss of pay.

M. MATERNITY LEAVE

Any female employee shall, upon request, be granted a leave of absence without pay for maternity purposes or the adoption of a child for a period of not more than (2) years. Any pregnant employee shall be entitled to continue working as long as she is physically able to do so and to return to her duties when physically able. At the beginning of the seventh (7) month of pregnancy, the employee's personal physician shall issue a certificate stating that the employee is physically able to continue her duties. Concurrence of the personal physician and the school medical director may be required by the Board to establish the initial date of the maternity leave. Any employee adopting an infant child may receive similar leave which shall commence upon receiving de facto custody of said infant. The employee requesting such leave as stated above shall indicate a tentative return to work date on a leave request form provided, and reconfirmation of such return to work date shall occur at least thirty (30) days prior to such return.

N. CARING FOR SICK MEMBER OF IMMEDIATE FAMILY

A leave of absence, without pay, of up to one (1) year may be granted to tenured employees for the purpose of caring for a sick member of the employee's family, consistent with established Board policy, after the employee has submitted proof satisfactory to the Superintendent that such leave is necessary.

O. RETURN FROM LEAVE

Employees returning after an authorized leave of absence shall be offered a similar position that they held at the **commencement of the leave of absence**. All benefits to which an employee was entitled at the time his leave of absence commenced, including unused accumulated sick leave shall be restored upon return from leave. However, an employee shall not accumulate any leave days during the period of absence.

All extensions or renewals of leaves shall be applied for and granted in writing.

P. RETIREMENT BENEFIT

Any employee with fifteen (15) years or more of service in the Trenton School District shall receive 1/240 of the employee's salary for each three (3) days of unused accumulated sick leave upon the employee's retirement or to his beneficiary upon his death before the effective date of retirement

Article 14 VACATIONS AND HOLIDAYS

- A. Vacations may be taken during any time of the year at times approved by the immediate supervisor.
- B. The number of annual vacation days allowed to employees shall be based on the total number of years of employment with the Trenton Public School System. However, leave time granted by the Board of Education shall not be calculated in years of employment for vacation purposes.
- C. Annual vacation allowances for employees shall be made in according to the following schedule:

The first to the 11th month - 1 day per month of service

1 year to 5 years - 12 days

5 years to 15 years - 15 days

15 years to 25 years - 20 days

25 years and over - 25 days

All vacation days are accrued.

D. Employees attaining their years of service during the months of July or August shall be eligible for vacation days that year.

IIVLITIUIT DUMIND OF LED.

- E. In any calendar year, where the vacation or any part thereof is not granted by reason of pressure of business, such vacation periods or parts thereof not granted shall accumulate and shall be granted during the school year as mutually agreed by the employee and immediate supervisor.
- F. Vacation allowance shall be granted to employees returning from unpaid leave in proportion to the amount of service rendered in that school year.
- G. All vacation earned and all such time accumulated shall be granted to all employees upon retirement or termination prior to the end of the school year. Full vacation allowances shall be granted to those employees whose retirement becomes effective after February 1 of any school year.
- H. Each employee shall be entitled to the specified holidays outlined on the approved school calendar and any revisions thereto approved by the Board. School closings due to inclement weather shall not be considered holidays. An employee who works on a day when schools are closed due to inclement weather is entitled to be compensated at an hourly rate based upon their annual salary, in addition to their regular salary, for only those hours worked and, only if approved in writing by his/her immediate supervisor or if he or she has been called to work via a Board approved public announcement. No employee shall be required to report to work when schools are closed due to inclement weather.
- I. If a holiday falls during an employee's vacation period, the employee shall be entitled to an extra vacation day.
- J. The Board shall reimburse an employee's beneficiary the full dollar amount, at the rate of 1/240, of the employee's unused vacation leave upon his/her death.

Article 15 MEDICAL BENEFITS

- 1. Individual and Family coverage under the New Jersey Blue Cross Hospital Service Plan and New Jersey Blue Shield Medical Surgical Plan, Rider J and Medi-Group (1420 series). Family with dependent coverage to age 25.
- 2. Unlimited major medical coverage with Provident Life and Accident Insurance Company. Family with dependent coverage to age 25. This program will cover 100% of the eligible major medical expenses for the balance of a calendar year when out-of-pocket expenses in the 20% co-insurance and \$100.00 deductible equal \$500, per individual or \$1,000 per family.
- 3. Full family coverage for employees under the New Jersey Dental Service Plan, Inc. (50-100 plan) -- no deductible, or Eastern Dental -- no deductible.
- 4. Any employee who retires shall be allowed to remain as part of the group plans provided by the Trenton Board of Education. That retiree shall be responsible for individual payments at the group rates.

Any secretary who retires at 55 or older with 25 years of service in the district, the Board shall pay the premium of individual coverage under the New Jersey Blue Cross Hospital Service Plan and the New Jersey Blue Shield Medical Surgical Plan (1420 series) including Rider J and Medi-Group, Unlimited Major Medical coverage with Provident Life and Accident Insurance Company with expenses in excess of \$2,500, or submitted to major medical paid at the rate of 100% until eligible for Medicare.

- 5. Blue Cross/Blue Shield Drug Prescription Co-pay \$3 generic/\$5.00 brand name/\$0 mail order family plan up to age 25.
- 6. The Board reserves the right to obtain equivalent insurance coverages to those set forth in the article through insurance carriers other than those specifically named in this article. However, under no circumstances shall the level of benefits be reduced.
- 7. Waiver Bonus If an employee waives health insurance or prescription insurance, each employee shall receive 50% of the health and/or prescription plan. The new employees who decide to waive coverage can only receive 50% of the lowest cost plan. The implementation of this is dependent on the approval of the Board of a 125 Plan. The employee must prove other employer-sponsored coverage. The bonus is taxable. (Cautionary language to be added regarding year before retirement. Parties to agree to language.)
- 8. State Health Benefits Plan becomes effective when all district unions agree. Until then current plan remains with \$5.00 HMO co-pay.

Article 16 VACANCIES AND NEW POSITIONS

- A. Notice of *all* vacancies and location of *all* positions, including new positions, shall be posted at each school and office building no later than thirty (30) days following formal notice of the Board action that created such vacancy.
 - 1. Secretaries who apply for a vacancy shall receive in writing from the Personnel Department proper acknowledgement of their application/request within ten (10) days.
 - 2. The Association must be notified in writing of all transfers, etc.
 - 3. All vacancies shall be posted for a minimum of ten (10) days.
- B. The Association will be notified of the identity of the person selected for the position within sixty (60) calendar days of the last day for the filing of applications or if the position has not been filled within that period of the reason for the delay.
- C. When a vacancy is filled from within the district the appointee shall be notified no later than 10 days after the action has been taken by the Board.
- D. All positions when vacated shall be advertised at the current job classification.
 - E. Every in-house secretary who applies for a position must be screened.

Article 17 SUBSTITUTES

Substitutes working 90 days or more are subject to the hiring procedures set forth in Article 16.

Article 18 DAILY WORKING HOURS

INMITTURE DUPING OF LEVE

- A. The regular work day for employees shall consist of a regular 7-hour work day year-round exclusive of a duty free lunch.
- B. Employees employed in the Administration Building and School Building will begin work at 8:00 a.m.
- C. All work time over the 7-hour work day shall be compensated at time and one-half.

Article 19 EVALUATION PROCEDURE

- A. Employees shall be evaluated annually in writing using the appropriate evaluation form, by their immediate supervisor. No employee shall be evaluated by another employee.
- B. An employee shall be given a copy of any evaluation report prepared by his supervisor at least one (1) day before any conference to discuss it. No such report shall be submitted to the Central Office, placed in the employee's file or otherwise acted upon without prior conference with the employee.
- C. An employee shall have the right, upon request, to review the contents of his personnel file located in the Office of Personnel and to receive copies at Board expense of any document contained therein. An employee shall have the right to have a representative of the Association accompany him during such review.
- D. No material derogatory to a employee's conduct, service, character, or personality shall be placed in his personnel file unless the employee has had an opportunity to review the material and receive a copy. The Employee shall acknowledge that he has had an opportunity to review such material by affixing his signature to the copy to be filed with the express understanding that such signature in no way indicates agreement with the contents thereof. The employee shall also have the right to submit a written answer to such material. Said answer shall be reviewed by the Superintendent or his designee and attached to the file copy.
- E. The Board agrees to protect the confidentialities of personal references, academic credentials and other similar documents and shall not establish any separate file which is not available for the employees inspection.
- F. Prior to any annual written evaluation, the immediate supervisor of a non-tenure employee shall have a conference with said employee, from time to time, regarding his/her performance as a secretary.

Article 20 PROMOTIONS

A. A promotion shall be defined as taking place when an individual applies and is appointed for a position which is rated higher than the one held prior to such application. When promoted, an employee shall move to the appropriate guide for the position at the employee's current guide step.

- B. Only when a regularly employed secretary is instructed by an administrator to assume the responsibilities of a higher level secretary within the unit for more than twenty (20) working days, will the Board pay him at the employee's same step on the appropriate guide to the position being filled, prorated from the initial date through the date on which he is relieved.
- C. Continuation in the same position, absent reclassification, shall not result in a promotion.

Article 21 DURATION OF AGREEMENT

- A. This Agreement shall be effective as of **July 1, 2005** and shall continue in effect until **June 30, 2006**, and **July 1, 2006** and shall continue in effect until **June 30, 2009** subject to the Association rights to negotiate in accordance with *N.J.S.A.* 34:13A-1 *et seq.*, under procedures defined in Article 2 and subject to the Association's right to negotiate a successor Agreement as provided in Article 2. This Agreement shall not be extended orally.
- B. This Agreement incorporates all the understanding of both parties and may not be modified subject to Article 2.
- C. In witness whereof the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be duly signed by their respective presidents and attested by their respective vice-presidents.

For the Board:	For the Association:
/s/ Sharon Larmore, Esq.	/s/ Patricia Vogt
/s/ Dr. Carolyn Gibson	/s/ Ann Sciarrotta
	/s/ Lenora Jefferson
	/s/ Victoria Dovie
Date: December 2, 2008	Date: December 2, 2008

Schedule A

Year 1 Salary Guides 2005-2006

Salary Guide – Senior Secretaries

Step	o Credits	50 Credits	60 Credits	90 Credits
1	22,808	24,624	25,785	26,845
9	23,716	25,533	26,643	27,753
3	24,624	26,441	27,551	28,661
4.	25,538	27,349	28,459	29,570
ſ,	26,340	28,157	29,267	30,377
6	27,549	29,166	30,276	31,586
7	28,350	30,175	31,285	32,395
8	29,368	31,184	32,294	35,405
9	30,877	32,193	55,304	54,414
10	31,487	33,304	54,414	35,524
11	35,505	35,322	56,452	37,542
12	36,028	37,84 <i>6</i>	38,955	40,065
1.5	38,652	40,469	41,570	42,689
14	41,877	43,194	44,304	45,414
15	47,442	49,259	50,569	51,469

Salary Guide - Administrative I Secretaries

Step	o Credits	30 Credits	60 Credits	90 Credits
1	23,936	25,777	26,902	28,027
2	24,856	26,698	27,823	28,948
3	25,777	27,618	28,743	29,869
4	26,698	28,539	29,664	30,789
5	27,516	29,357	30,482	31,608
6	28,539	30,380	31,505	52,631
7	29,562	\$1,403	32,528	38,658
8	30,585	32,426	33,551	34,676
9,	31,608	55,449	34,574	<i>55</i> ,699
10	32,733	54,574	<i>\$5</i> ,699	36,824
11	34,983	36,324	37,950	39,075
12	57,540	39,382	40,507	41,632
1.8	40,200	42,041	43,166	44,292
14	42,962	44,803	45,928	47,053
15	49,109	50,951	52,076	53,201

Step	_ 0 Credits	30 Credits	60 Credits	90 Credits
ı	26,535	28,394	29,530	30,665
2	27,465	20,325	30,459	31,595
3	28,394	30,252	31,388	32,524
1	29,328	31,182	52,317	33,458
5	50,149	32,008	33,145	34,279
6	31,182	33,040	54,176	35,312
7	32,214	S4 <u>,0</u> 73	35,208	36,344
S	55,247	35,105	36,241	37,377
9	54,279	36,138	37,273	38,409
10	35,415	37,273	38,409	39,545
11	36,909	38,767	39,903	41,089
12	39,751	41,610	42,746	45,881
1.3	42,642	44,501	45,637	46,772
14	45,843	47,702	48,837	49,978
15	52,461	54,920	55,456	56,591

Year 2 Salary Guides 2006-2007

INCHION DOMED OF CD.

Salary Guide - Senior Secretaries

Step	0 Credits	90 Credits	60 Credits	90 Credits
1	22,875	24,697	25,811	26,924
2	23,786	25,608	26,721	27,835
S	24,697	26,519	27,632	28,746
4	25,608	2 7,430	28,548	29,6 <i>67</i>
5	26,418	28,240	29,553	30,467
б	27,490	29,252	30,365	31,479
7	28,442	30,264	31,377	32,49 l
8	29,454	31,276	32,390	33,503
. 9	30,467	32,288	33,402	34,515
10	31,580	33,402	34,515	35,629
11	33,604	55,426	36,540	37,653
12	36,135	37,957	59,070	40,183
13	38,766	40,588	41,702	42,815
14	41,499	43,521	44,435	45,548
15	47,589	49,404	50,518	51,621

Salary Guide - Administrative I Secretaries

Step	o Credits	30 Credits	60 Credits	90 Credits
1	24,399	26,276	27,128	28,570
2	25,337	27,214	28,361	29,508
3	26,276	28,153	29,500	30,447
4.	27,214	29,091	50,238	31,385
5	28,048	29,925	31,072	32,219
6	29,091	30,968	32,115	33,262
7	30,154	32,011	33,158	34,305
8	31,177	33,053	34,200	35,347
9	32,219	54,096	35,248	36,390
10	33,366	\$5,24 5	36,390	57,537
11	35,660	37 ,537	38,684	59,831
12	38,267	40,144	41,291	42,438
1.5	40,978	42,855	44,002	45,149
14	43,793	45 , 670	46,817	47,964
1.5	50,060	51,937	53,084	54,230

Step	0 Credits	30 Credits	60 Credits	90 Credits
1	27,419	29,339	30,513	31,686
2	28,379	30,299	31,475	52,647
S	29,339	31,260	32,435	35,607
4.	30,299	32,220	33,395	54,567
5	31,153	55,073	34,247	35,420
G	32,220	34,140	35,514	36,487
7	55,287	35,207	36,381	37,554
88	34,354	36,274	57,448	38,621
9	55,420	37,341	38,514	39,688
10	36,594	38,514	59,688	40,862
11	38,138	40,058	41,232	42,405
12	41,075	42,995	44,169	45,342
1.3	44,062	45,983	47,156	48,330
14	47,370	49,290	50,464	51,637
1.5	54,208	56,129	57,302	58,476

Schedule C

Year 3 Salary Guides 2007-2008

Salary Guide - Senior Secretaries

Step	0 Credits	30 Credits	60 Credits	90 Credits
1	22,946	24,774	25,891	27,008
2	23,860	25,688	26,805	27.921
3	24,774	26,602	27,718	2 8,835
4	25,688	27,515	28,632	29,749
5	26,500	28,328	29,444	30,561
G	27,515	29,343	50,460	51,577
7	28,531	30,358	31,475	32,592
\$	29,546	\$1,374	52,490	33,607
Ð	30,561	32,389	33,506	34,623
10	31,678	33,506	34,623	35.739
1.]	33,709	55,586	36,653	37,770
12	36,247	38,075	59,192	40,508
13	38,887	40,715	41,851	42,948
14	41,628	43,456	44,578	45,690
1.5	47,730	49,558	50,675	51,782

Salary Guide - Administrative I Secretaries

Step	o Credits	30 Credits	60 Credits	90 Credits
1	25,004	26,928	28,103	29,278
샹	25,966	2 7,839	29,065	30,240
55	26,928	28,851	30,026	51,202
4	27,889	29,813	50,988	32,163
5	28,744	30,667	31,843	55,018
6	29,813	\$1,786	32,911	34,087
7	30,851	32,805	33,980	35,155
8	\$1,950	33,873	35,049	36,224
9	33,018	54,942	36,117	37,292
10	34,194	36,117	37,292	38,468
11	36,544	38,468	39,643	40,819
12	39,216	41,139	42,315	43,490
1.5	41,994	45,917	45,093	46,268
14	44,879	46,803	47,978	49,153
15	51,301	58,225	54,400	55,575

Step	0 Credits	30 Credits	60 Credits	90 Credits
1	28,132	30,102	31,306	32,510
φ	29,117	31,087	32,291	59,495
3	30,102	32, 072	33,276	54,481
4	31,087	\$ \$,058	34,262	55,466
5	31,963	33, 9 35	35,137	56,34-1
6	33,058	35,028	36,232	37,436
7	34,152	86,122	37,327	58,531
8	35,247	37,217	58,421	39,625
9	36,341	38,314	39,516	40,720
10	37,546	39,516	40,720	41,924
11	39,129	41,100	42,304	48,508
12	42,145	44,113	45,517	46,521
13	45,208	47,178	48,382	49,586
14	48,601	50,571	51,776	52,980
15	55,618	57,588	58,792	59,996

Schedule D

Year 4 Salary Guides 2008-2009

Salary Guide - Senior Secretaries

Step	0 Credits	30 Credits	60 Credits	90 Credits
1	25,722	25,611	26,766	27,921
2	24,667	26,556	27,711	28,865
3	25,611	27,501	28,655	29,810
4	26,556	28,445	29,600	30,755
5	27,396	29,285	30,440	31,594
6	28,445	30,335	31,489	32,644
7	29,495	31,384	32,539	33,694
8	30,545	32,434	33,589	34,743
9	31,594	33,484	54,638	55,793
10	32,749	54,638	35,798	36,947
11	34,848	36,738	37,892	39,047
12	37,472	39,362	40,516	41,671
13	40,201	42,091	43,245	44,400
14	43,085	44,925	46,079	47,234
15	45,924	51,233	52,388	55,532

Salary Guide – Administrative I Secretaries

Step	0 Credits	30 Credits	60 Credits	90 Credits
11	25,473	27,433	28,630	29,828
2	26,458	25,412	29,610	30,807
3	27,433	29,392	30,590	31,787
1.	28,412	30,372	\$1,569	32,767
.5	29,283	31,243	32,440	\$3,638
6	30,372	32,331	35,529	34,726
7	\$1,460	33,420	34,617	35,815
8	32,549	34,509	35,706	36,903
9	33,638	55,597	36,795	37,992
10	34,835	56,796	37,992	39,190
!]	37,230	39,190	40,387	41,584
12	59,952	41,911	48,108	44,306
1.5	42,782	44,741	45,939	47,136
14	45,791	47,681	48,878	50,076
15	52,264	54,223	55,421	56,618

Step	0 Credits	30 Credits	60 Credits	90 Credits
]	28,723	30,734	31,964	83,193
2	29,728	31,740	32,969	34,199
	30,734	52,746	33,975	35,205
4	31,740	33,759	34,981	36,211
5	\$2,634	34,646	35,875	37,105
6	3 5,75 2	35,763	36,993	38,222
7	34,869	56,881	38,110	39,340
8	35,987	87,999	39,228	40,457
9	37,105	39,116	40,346	41,575
10	38,334	40,346	41,575	42,804
11	59,951	41,963	43,192	44,422
12	43,028	45,040	46,269	47,498
13	46,157	48,169	49,598	50,628
14	49,622	51,634	52,863	54,092
15	56,786	58,797	60,027	61,256